
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2024, 7:00 PM 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 
 
III.  PUBLIC HEARING(S): (Notice requirements met, hearings may commence unless otherwise noted.) 

 
1. V202409 – Matthew & Michael Vengruskas & John Wilson, owner/applicant, request for 

variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 4.1-Permitted Uses and Uses Requiring 
Special Permit: to permit an existing first floor unit to be changed to an apartment creating a 
two-family dwelling at 35 West Road, APN 019-179-0000 in a Commercial (C) zone. 

 
2. V202410 – Kathy Hearn, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 2.1.10 – Highway Clearance Setback: to reduce the front yard setback from 
50ft to 35ft to install a shed at 94 Burbank Road, APN 148-006-0000 in a Rural Agricultural 
Residential (RAR) zone. 

 
3. V202411 – Ronald and Bonnie Bahler, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington 

Zoning Regulations Section 7.9.C-Rear Lot Requirement: to allow one driveway to serve two 
rear lots within a fee simple accessway less than 50ft wide, and to allow driveways outside of 
the accessway at 18 Elderberry Lane, APN 181-016-0000 in a Rural Agricultural Residential 
(RAR) zone. 

 
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the August 5, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
2. Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. North Central District Health Dept. Ellington Annual Report July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024. 
 

V.  ADJOURNMENT:   
 

Next Regular Meeting Scheduled for Monday, October 7, 2024 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting via link:               Join Zoom Meeting by phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86040349584  1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
Meeting ID: 860 4034 9584    Meeting ID: 860 4034 9584 
Passcode: 135581     Passcode: 135581 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE    FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86040349584
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/






















 

 

ELLINGTON PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REVIEW SHEET 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
V202409 – Matthew & Michael Vengruskas & John Wilson, owner/applicant, request for 
variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 4.1-Permitted Uses and Uses Requiring 
Special Permit: to permit an existing first floor unit to be changed to an apartment creating a 
two-family dwelling at 35 West Road, APN 019-179-0000 in a Commercial (C) zone. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING DATE:               September 9, 2024 
STAFF REVIEW RETURN DATE:   September 3, 2024 
 

 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS AND/OR REQUIREMENTS 
 
Town Engineer 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DPW- No comment. 
WPCA- Change of use may trigger a re-assessment. 
Applicant should approach the WPCA board for discussion. 
 

 
Building Official 
 
 
North Central District Health 
Department 
 
 
Fire Marshal 
 
 
Public Works Director/WPCA 
 
 
Assessor 
 

 
Traffic Authority 
 

Ambulance Services 

 

 













See Attached





ELLINGTON PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REVIEW SHEET 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
V202411 – Ronald and Bonnie Bahler, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington 
Zoning Regulations Section 7.9.C-Rear Lot Requirement: to allow one driveway to serve two 
rear lots within a fee simple accessway less than 50ft wide, and to allow driveways outside of 
the accessway at 18 Elderberry Lane, APN 181-016-0000 in a Rural Agricultural Residential 
(RAR) zone. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING DATE:               September 9, 2024 
STAFF REVIEW RETURN DATE:   September 5, 2024 
 

 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS AND/OR REQUIREMENTS 
 
Town Engineer 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DPW- Requests that if accepted, a storm water 
management plan be presented. 
WPCA- No comment. 

 
Building Official 
 
 
North Central District Health 
Department 
 
 
Fire Marshal 
 
 
Public Works Director/WPCA 
 
 
Assessor 
 

 
Traffic Authority 
 

Ambulance Services 

 

 





2024_08-05 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 3 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, AUGUST 5, 2024, 7:00 PM 
 

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING  

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 

PRESENT: Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri, Vice Chairman Katherine Heminway, Regular 
members Ken Braga, Subhra Roy, Miranda Graziani, Alternates Ron Brown, Ron 
Stomberg and Rodger Hosig 

 
ABSENT:  None 

 
STAFF 
PRESENT: John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/Zoning Enforcement Officer, and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri called the Zoning Board of Appeals 
(ZBA) meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): None 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

  
1. V202407 – Keila Rivera, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 
35ft to 21ft to expand existing front porch along North Park Street at 46 North Park Street, 
APN 020-173-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 

 
Time:  7:01 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Heminway, Braga, Roy and Graziani 
   
Keila Rivera, 227 Pine Street, Holyoke, MA was present to represent the application. 
 
Keila Rivera is requesting a variance to reduce the front yard setback from 35 feet to 21 feet 
to expand the existing front porch along North Park Street. Keila added they will be 
expanding the living room and adding a bedroom within the proposed renovations. 
 
John Colonese noted the Board members received the site plan and elevations showing the 
proposed porch. 
 
Vice Chairman Heminway noted the plans will be a great improvement to the property. Vice 
Chairman Heminway added the proposed sewer connection will be located under the porch. 
John Colonese confirmed the applicant will be working with the Water Pollution Control 

  
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 
 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


2024_08-05 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 2 of 3 

Authority for approval of the sewer connection. John noted the house has not been occupied 
for a very long time.   
 
Edward Shaw, 41 North Park Street, inquired about the plans for 46 North Park Street. 
Edward reviewed the plans and stated any improvements to the property are welcome since 
no one has lived in the dwelling for years. 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE 
THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202407 – Keila Rivera, owner/applicant, request for 
variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to 
reduce the front yard setback from 35ft to 21ft to expand existing front porch along North 
Park Street at 46 North Park Street, APN 020-173-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 
MOVED (ROY), SECONDED (GRAZIANI) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
W/CONDITION(S) V202407 – Keila Rivera, owner/applicant, request for variance of the 
Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front 
yard setback from 35ft to 21ft to expand existing front porch along North Park Street at 46 
North Park Street, APN 020-173-0000 in a Residential (R) zone. 
 

   Condition(s): Shall obtain Water Pollution Control Authority approval. 
 
Hardship: Non-conforming lot and house location. 

 
2. V202408 – Jeanna Giansanti, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the rear yard setback from 
10ft to 1ft to install a 10’x12’ shed at 5 Manhattan Road West-2, APN 149-012-0000 in a 
Lake Residential (LR) zone. 
 
Time:  7:10 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Heminway, Braga, Roy and Graziani 
 
Jeanna and Christopher Giansanti, 5 Manhattan Road West-2, were present to represent 
the application. Jeanna Giansanti is looking to take down an existing non-conforming shed, 
which is along the front yard near the property line and build a 10’x12’ shed in the rear of 
the property. Jeanna explained the well for the property is also within the front yard and the 
lot is small and non-confirming. Jeanna provided an aerial photo of the property and showed 
the proposed location in the rear yard.      
 
Commissioner Braga asked if the shed could be moved more than 1 foot from the property 
line. Jeanna Giansanti said it would be difficult with the location of the existing porch.  
Commissioner Roy asked for the distance from the porch to the property line. Christopher 
Giansanti said it is about 19 feet. Jeanna explained the proposed location of the shed using 
the aerial photo and noted the shed location is also limited by an existing rock. 
 
Alternate Brown stated the Zoning Board of Appeals historically has not approved a variance 
for a 1-foot setback. The reason for this is to allow property owners to have enough distance 
to use a ladder or work on the structure without trespassing onto an abutting property. 

 
Jeanna asked the board for recommendations on the setback. Chairman Thanvanthri 
recommended reducing the size of the shed. Alternate Brown recommended redesigning 
the shed. Alternate Hosig stated that he feels a 2-foot setback is adequate space to maintain 
the shed. Christopher Giansanti asked for a recommendation on the setback from the Board. 
Alternate Brown asked what a safe distance would be to maintain the shed, and if 3 feet 
would be enough of a distance. Christopher stated the new shed could be built 3 feet from 



2024_08-05 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 3 of 3 

the rear property line and maintained appropriately. No one from the public spoke regarding 
the application. 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202408 – Jeanna Giansanti, owner/applicant, 
request for variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard 
Setbacks: to reduce the rear yard setback from 10ft to 1ft to install a 10’x12’ shed at 5 
Manhattan Road West-2, APN 149-012-0000 in a Lake Residential (LR) zone. 
 
MOVED (THANVANTHRI), SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE V202408 – Jeanna Giansanti, owner/applicant, request for variance of the 
Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the rear yard 
setback from 10ft to 3ft to install a 10’x12’ shed at 5 Manhattan Road West-2, APN 149-
012-0000 in a Lake Residential (LR) zone. 
 
Hardship:  Non-conforming lot size. 
 

3. V202404 – Gondal Corporation, owner/applicant, to appeal a decision from the Zoning 
Enforcement Officer dated March 27, 2024, of Section 6.3.2-General, Section 6.3.9-
Illumination, and Section 6.3.10-Prohibited Signs at 83 West Road, APN 028-056-0000 in a 
Commercial (C) zone. 
 
Time:  7:10 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Heminway, Braga, Roy and Graziani 
 
John Colonese noted the letter dated July 31, 2024, from the Law Offices of Edward M. 
Schenkel, LLC requesting a withdrawal of the appeal on behalf of the owner.  The letter also 
states the internally illuminated dispenser pump signs will be removed within 7 days.  
 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL OF V202404 – Gondal Corporation, owner/applicant, to appeal a 
decision from the Zoning Enforcement Officer dated March 27, 2024, of Section 6.3.2-
General, Section 6.3.9-Illumination, and Section 6.3.10-Prohibited Signs at 83 West Road, 
APN 028-056-0000 in a Commercial (C) zone. 
 

IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS:  
1. Approval of the July 1, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
      MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 

APPROVE JULY 1, 2024, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 
 
2. Correspondence/Discussion: None 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO ADJOURN THE 
ZBA MEETING AT 7:37 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk  



ELLINGTON
Annual Report

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Vision

Mission Statement Overview

That all North Central District Health Department member communities,
regardless of circumstance, enjoy optimal health status and achieve the highest
quality of life possible.

 The North Central District Health
Department (NCDHD) provides our

eight (8) Member-Towns with full time
public health services.  We are on call

24/7 for emergencies.  The Health
District is governed by a Board.  
Ellington is represented by Fred
Journalist and Dianne Trueb.  

The Health District is comprised of
Environmental Health, Community
Health, Public Health Emergency
Preparedness, & Administration

Sections.

The North Central District Health
Department promotes and protects the
optimal health status and well being of our
communities by:

administering public health regulations

promoting and engaging community

partnerships

promoting primary prevention and

health education, and 

ensuring public health emergency

preparedness

 NCDHD Nurse, Kori, with Dianne Trueb at the
Ellington Farmers Market on Sept 16th, 2023.

Follow us on our
Facebook page at

North Central
District Health
Department

 

Or on our Instagram
page

@northcentraldistricthd

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________



NCDHD Activities

Food Protection
FY23-FY24
Food Service
Inspections:  47 
Plan Reviews:  6
Temporary Events:  51

Food Protection

Day Care Centers

Day Care Centers
FY23-FY24
Qty:  9

Septic Systems

Septic Systems
FY23-FY24
Soil Tests:  16
Plan Reviews:  41  
Septic Permits:  34
B100* Reviews:  91
Well Permits:  7  

*Reviews for additions, garages,
decks, pools, etc.  

Highlights

 In February 2023, the CT Department of Public Health adopted the
FDA Food Code. The Health District is responsible for conducting

plan reviews of all proposed food service establishments,
renovations, and reviewing changes of ownership of existing food

establishments. In addition to inspecting restaurants, NCDHD
inspections the broad range of food establishments that are
defined as serving the public. Temporary food events, which

include fairs, carnivals, car shows, and other public events are
increasing significantly. The number of food trucks is also on the

rise with food truck events becoming very popular.

NCDHD is responsible for the
issuance of permits for on-site
sewage disposal facilities.  Soil
investigation, the location and

method of installation are
governed by the Public Health

Code and are enforced by NCDHD.
This process requires preliminary
site reviews, comprehensive soil

testing, review of plans,
installation inspections and a final
issuance of a Permit to Discharge.

Day Care centers are
licensed by the CT-DPH. 

NCDHD conducts an
environmental inspection
once every two (2) years

and provides that
inspection to the state as

is required for re-
licensure.

The Health District has been active in seeking funding opportunities to continue supporting
critical public health programming. During the 2023-2024 fiscal year, the Health District applied
for, and were awarded, two competitive grants. The first grant is a state grant to combat tobacco
use and vaping, with a 5-year, $75,000 a year award. Tobacco cessation classes will be offered in

English and Spanish, and there will be options for virtual classes as well! The second grant is a
federal grant to combat opioid overdoses. We partnered with the City of Hartford on this project,
which will span five years, with an annual award to the Health District of approximately $200,000
a year. We are pleased to be able to continue our opioid overdose work with first responders and

other local partners.

The Health District also received non-competitive funding to assess and address immunization
gaps within our jurisdiction, and workforce development funds to support the rebuilding of the

public health workforce.



FY23-FY24
Housing:  30
Sewage Overflow:  3
Food Service:   4
Miscellaneous:  15
Water Quality:   2
Refuse/Garbage:   3
Total:  57

Complaints Complaints

Recreational Swimming
& Public Pools

Recreational Swimming
& Public Pools

FY23-FY24
Recreational Swimming:  1
Licensed & Inspected:  6

Tattoo Parlors

Tattoo Parlors
FY23-FY24
Registered:  0

Lead

LeadFY23-FY24
Cases:  86

*Lead numbers reported are for the
entire Health District, not by town

Barber Shops, Beauty and
Nail Salons

Barber Shops,
Beauty and Nail

Salons

FY23-FY24
Licensed &
Inspected:  3
Plan Reviews:  2

Wells

FY23-FY24
Well Permits:  7
Water Test:  8

Private Wells

NCDHD is responsible for
investigating a broad range of
complaints including, but not
limited to:  housing, sewage
overflow, food service, water

quality, refuse/garbage and other
miscellaneous complaints.  Each

complaint received into NCDHD is
investigated by one of our

Sanitarians or Environmental
Specialists.  

NCDHD approves applications for the
drilling of new private water supply

wells. Once a well is drilled, the water
must be tested by an approved

laboratory and the results reviewed
by NCDHD staff. For information on

how to maintain your drinking water,
please visit:

http://www.ncdhd.org/private-
drinking-water-wells

Public pools within the District are licensed
and inspected annually. NCDHD pool
inspections focus on public safety and

cleanliness. 
Between Memorial Day and Labor Day,
NCDHD conducts weekly bathing water

sampling at local beaches within the
district. The water is tested for E.coli

bacteria and closure recommendations are
made for locations with elevations. 

The Health District registers tattoo
parlors to ensure that the technicians

are licensed and receive annual
training in disinfection from a

licensed physician.

Connecticut law requires children to be tested for
lead twice before the age of three. The most

common cause of lead poisoning in children is
exposure to lead based painted surfaces. Lead-based

paint is often found in houses built before 1978.
There is no safe level of lead. Lead in the body can

cause learning delays and impact growth. 

NCDHD conducts environmental lead inspections to
identify lead-based hazards in response to reports of
children with elevated blood lead levels. Connecticut

laws have become more protective of children,
resulting in a significant increase in lead cases. 

NCDHD reviews and
approves plans for

cosmetology salons, and
barber shops, and

licenses and inspects
these establishments.

Re-inspections are
conducted as necessary.



Public Health
Preparedness

Communicable 
Diseases/Nursing  

 Our Public Health Nurses are dedicated to overseeing and recording all legally mandated
reportable diseases, ensuring the health and safety of our community.  In addition to this
critical work, we manage both active and latent tuberculosis cases with the utmost care.

Each fall, the health district offers convenient flu clinics to help protect residents from
seasonal influenza, and we handle billing with several insurance providers to make this

process seamless for our constituents.  We also provide blood pressure screenings at no cost,
promoting heart health and early detection of potential issues.  Currently, the Public Health

Nursing Staff are working on an immunization grant to fill the gaps in immunization services,
striving to provide support to our towns.

The North Central District Health Department (NCDHD) actively participates in local, regional, and
statewide planning, training and exercises. This is done to ensure our policies, procedures,

training and equipment are current and capable of responding to emergency situations. These
situations are varied along a broad spectrum of potential threats to include severe weather,

emergent diseases, endemic diseases and man-made disasters.  

 NCDHD team member Jessica, with Lori Spielman, at the Ellington Earth Day
event on April 20th, 2024. They were able to give out educational materials and

engage with our residents.


	MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2024, 7:00 PM
	2024_08-26 PW comments.pdf
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
	COMMENTS AND/OR REQUIREMENTS


